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Introduction 

MINERAL AREA COLLEGE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Management's discussion and analysis is an overview of the financial position and financial 
activities of Mineral Area College. It should be read in conjunction with the financial statements 
and notes that follow as a result of the independent audit performed by Boyer & Associates on 
the FY 2018 (July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018) financial activities and conditions of the College. 

The College prepared the financial statements in accordance with Government Accounting 
Standards Board (GASS) principles. During 2003, the College implemented GASS Statement No. 
35, Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges 
and Universities. GASS Statement No. 35 establishes standards for external financial reporting 
for public colleges and universities and requires that financial statements be presented on a 
combined or consolidated basis to focus on the College as a whole, rather than a series of 
separate individual funds. Previously, financial statements focused on the accountability of 
individual fund groups rather than on the College as a whole. The accompanying combined 
financial statements of the College include the accounts of the Junior College District of Mineral 
Area, the Mineral Area College Building Corporation (the Building Corporation), and College Park 
Apartments. 

There are three financial statements presented: the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows. The 
emphasis of discussion about the financial statements is on the current year data. 

Funds statements are still used to manage the College and for external reporting to various 
agencies including the Missouri Department of Elementary and Secondary Education and the 
Coordinating Board of Higher Education. 

Statement of Net Position 

The Statement of Net Position presents the assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, 
and net position of the College at the end of the fiscal year, June 30, 2018. The purpose of the 
Statement of Net Position is to present a snapshot of the financial condition of the College. The 
total net position, which is tile difference between total assets and deferred outflows and total 
liabilities and deferred inflows, is one of the indicators of the current financial condition of the 
College. 

Net position is presented in three major categories. The first is invested in capital assets, which 
represents the College's equity in its property, plant, and equipment, net of related debt. The 
second is restricted net assets, which are restricted for capital projects, debt service and 
scholarships. The third is unrestricted net assets, which are available to the College for any lawful 
purpose. 

Restricted net assets are funds that are limited in terms of the purpose and time for which the 
funds can be spent. Restricted net assets are further categorized between expendable and 
nonexpendable. Restricted expendable net assets are available to be spent by the College after 



externally imposed stipulations have been fulfilled or after the passage of time. Restricted non­
expendable net assets are endowments for which only the interest portion can be spent. 

The following chart of the College's net position on June 30, 2018 and 2017, shows the 
unrestricted portion at $(3,980 thousand) and $(3,977 thousand), respectively, which includes a 
$(1,395 thousand) prior period adjustment as a result of the implementation of GASB 75. The 
total net position of the College increased by 3% before the prior period adjustment and decreased 
by 16% after the prior period adjustment for the year ending June 30, 2018. The unrestricted fund 
balance increased by $3 thousand, which includes the impact of the required GASB 68 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions for the reporting of retirement plan liabilities and 
GASB 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. 
Changes for the pension reporting are included in the deferred outflows with a $319 thousand 
increase, a $668 thousand decrease in liabilities, and a $1, 146 thousand increase to deferred 
inflows in the net position of the College. Changes for the other postemployment benefits 
reporting are included in the liabilities with a $2, 772 thousand increase and an $89 thousand 
increase to deferred inflows in the net position of the College. 

NET POSITION 
Total Assets 
Deferred Outflows 

Total Liabilities 
Deferred Inflows 

Invested in Capital Assets 
Restricted 

Non-Expendable 
Expendable 

Prior Period Adjustment 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

FY 2018 
(in thousands) 

$ 35, 165 
9,038 

(32,830) 
(5, 148) 

6,225 

7,894 

2,219 
1,487 

(1,395) 
(3,980) 

$ 6 225 

FY 2017 
(in thousands) 

$ 35,843 
8,761 

(33,215) 
(4,004) 

7,385 

7,787 

2,216 
1,359 

(3,977) 

$ _J,}85 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents the College's 
financial results for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The statement includes the College's 
revenues and expenses, both operating and non-operating. 

Operating revenues and expenses are those for which the College directly exchanges goods and 
services. Tuition and fees are examples of operating revenues. Non-operating revenues and 
expenses are those that exclude specific, direct exchanges of goods and services. Local property 
tax revenue and state aid are two examples of non-operating revenues where the local taxpayers 
and state legislature, respectively, do not directly receive goods and services for the revenue. 
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The following is a summarized version of the College's revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
assets for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

Operating Revenues 
Operating Expenditures 

Operating lncome/(Loss) 

Non-Operating Revenues Less 
Expenditures 
Increase in Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 
Prior Period Adjustment 

Net Position, End of Year 

FY 2018 
(in thousands) 
$ 21,852 

(31,840) 

(9,988) 

10,223 
235 

7,385 
(1,395) 

$ 6,225 

FY 2017 
(in thousands) 
$ 23,994 

(34,608) 

(10,614) 

10,545 
(69) 

7,454 

$ 7,385 

One of the financial strengths of the College is the diverse stream of revenues, which supplement 
its student tuition and fees. Overall, revenues (operating & non-operating) have decreased by 
$2,464 thousand from FY 2017 to FY 2018. Non-operating revenues are down $322 thousand, 
which is primarily a result of a $644 thousand decrease in state aid. Operating revenues are 
down $2, 142 thousand, which includes a $377 thousand decrease in tuition and fees, a $435 
thousand decrease in state and local grants and contracts, and a $1,083 thousand decrease in 
federal grants and contracts. The College continues to be a participant in a consortium with other 
Missouri community colleges in the remaining TAACCCT grant, MoStemWINS, from the 
Department of Labor, which closes out in FY 2019. 

The following is the College's FY 2018 and FY 2017 revenues, both operating and non-operating. 

REVENUES 
Operating Revenues 

Student Tuition 
Auxiliary Operations 
Contracts & Grants 
Other 

Total Operating Revenues 

Non-Operating Revenues 
State Appropriations 
Property Taxes 

· Investments 
Gifts 
Interest on Debt 

Total Non-Operating Revenue 

FY 2018 
(in thousands) 

$ 

iii 

4,773 
2,691 

13,794 
594 

21,852 

5,711 
4,424 

17& 
356 

(446) 
10,223 

FY 2017 
(in thousands) 

$ 5,150 
2,870 

15,313 
661 

23,994 

6,355 
4,294 

115 
354 

(573) 
10,545 



The following chart shows the total operating expenses for the College during the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. Overall expenses decreased by approximately $2,768 thousand 
from 2017. Salaries and benefits decreased by approximately $823 thousand. Student aid, which 
is tied to enrollment, decreased by $1,455 thousand. 

FY 2018 FY 2017 
OPERATING EXPENSES {in thousands) {in thousands) 
Operating Expenditures 

Salaries and Benefits $ 15,208 $ 16,031 
Consulting Services 196 359 
Travel 235 258 
Student Aid 8,013 9,468 
Supplies and Services 5,653 5,938 
Depreciation 1,665 1,725 
Utilities 870 829 

Total Operating Expenses $ 31,840 $ 34,608 

In addition, the following chart shows the June 30, 2018 and 2017, total expenses by functional 
allocation for the College. 

EXPENSES BY FUNCTION 
Operating Expenditures 

Instruction 
Public Service 
Academic Support 
Support Services 
lnslilulional Support 
Plant and Maintenance 
Student Aid 
Auxiliary Enterprises 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses by 
Function 

Iv 

FY 2018 
(in thousands) 

$ 

$ 

9,329 
43 

2,843 
2,258 
2,734 
2,336 
8,013 
2,619 
1,665 

31,840 

FY 2017 
(in thousands) 

$ 

$ 

9,776 
33 

2,351 
2,360 
4,066 
2,177 
9,468 
2,652 
1,725 

34,608 



Statement of Cash Flows 

The Statement of Cash Flows presents information about the cash activity of the College. The 
statement shows the major sources and uses of cash. The following is a summary of the 
Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

FY 2018 FY 2017 
(in thousands) (in thousands) 

Cash Provided (Used) By: 

Operating Activities $ (7,627) $ (7,671) 
Non-Capital Financing Activities 10,491 11,003 
Capital Financing Activities (2,249) (3,855) 
Investing Activities 52 205 

Net Change in Cash 667 (318) 
Cash, Beginning of the Year 4,596 4,914 

Cash, End of the Year $ 5,263 $ 4,596 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets are defined as those items costing over $10,000 and which have a normal useful 
life of more than one year. The College has created replacement projects for its facilities and 
technology. The projects are updated annually and the funds are designated in the plant fund. 

Below is a summary of the capital assets, net of depreciation as of June 30, 2018 and 2017: 

Land 
Buildings & Improvements 
Construction in Progress 
Student Housing System 
Equipment & Vehicles 
Library Books 

Total Capital Assets 

2018 
$385,066 

17,535, 138 
81,062 

2,230,221 
426,340 

$20,657,827 

2017 
$385,066 

18,316,017 
23,245 

2,415 ,963 
417,537 

1,715 
$21,559,543 

There were $446,043 of Building and Improvements additions in FY 2018. Depreciation on the 
building and improvements for the year totaled $1,226,923. Equipment purchases for 2018 totaled 
$259, 108 consisting of various enhancement grant equipment purchases in the amount of 
$185,430 and the purchase of two transit vans in the amount of $73,678. Depreciation on 
equipment for FY 2018 was $250,304. 

Debt Outstanding 
Unamortized Costs 

Total Debt Outstanding 

6/30/2017 
. $14,456,087 

(684, 184) 

$13,771,903 

Issued 

v 

Retired 
$1,040, 183 

(31,773) 

$1,008,410 

6/30/2018 
$13,415,904 

(652,411) 

$12,763,493 



As of June 30, 2018, the College had two general obligation bond issues outstanding, totaling 
$8, 700,000. A note payable with the Department of Natural Resources had a balance on June 
30, 2018, of $211, 133. Refinancing in June 2017 was obtained for certificates of participation for 
college housing. The balance on these new certificates of participation on June 30, 2018, was 
$4,504, 771. Total long-term debt net of unamortized costs as of June 30, 2018, was $12, 763,493. 

Additional information on the District's capital assets and long-term debt can be found in Note 4, 
5 and 6 respectively to the basic financial statements. 

Economic Outlook 

The College primarily relies on three funding sources for its operations - appropriations from the 
State of Missouri, local property taxes, and tuition and fees from students. Consistency and 
growth in all three of these areas are important to the ongoing operation of the College. 

The State of Missouri is experiencing revenue growth during FY 2019, but an error by the state 
that caused under withholding of income taxes is creating uncertainty. There is also optimism 
about the state income tax lag. Even though income tax collections are down about 6.5%, overall 
the state is only 3.5% down compared to budget. The gap is supposed to narrow as citizens 
either have more taxes withheld from paychecks or pay more on tax day in April. If the gap 
disappears by May, higher education institutions should be free and clear from any withholding 
by Governor Parson. 

A change in lefldership in Jefferson City has increased confidence regarding funding in higher 
education. The MCCA governmental affairs team members are optimistic regarding the allocation 
for higher education, speculating between a flat and a 3.0% increase for FY 2020. Community 
colleges should benefit from additional funding for customized and workforce training, as this item 
is high on Governor Parson's list of priorities for the FY 2020 budget. Regarding funding for the 
three financial aid programs that the State of Missouri provides to students who are Missouri 
residents, A Plus, Access Missouri, and Bright Flight, these programs were fully funded in FY 
2018 and appear to be on track to be fully funded for FY 2019 as well. 

The Missouri Department of Higher Education, yet again, adjusted the College's funding formula, 
moving from five to six KPls. The College anticipates successful completion of all 6 measures, 
including student success and progress, percentage of credit courses successfully completed, 
quality of student learning (licensure passage rates), non-core expenditures as a percentage of 
total expenditures, and tuition and fees as a percentage of family income. 

In an analysis of data to project future enrollment, the College relies on enrollment data from area 
high schools and unemployment rates. It appears that graduating classes from the high schools 
will continue to rise slightly over the next four years and then level off. This translates into 
potential increases in enrollment for both dual credit and regular enrollment after high 
school. Unfortunately, the unemployment rate in St. Francois and Madison Counties remain very 
low. The tight job market is attracting students out of high school to enter the workforce instead 
of investing in education. 

Overall, the College is experiencing a decline in enrollment but expenditures have been adjusted 
accordingly, resulting in a balanced budget being presented and approved for FY 2019. 
Enrollment revenue is slightly off for the fall semester. The administration is hoping for a rebound 
in spring and summer enrollment revenue to offset the shortfall. 

Dr. Steven J. Kurtz 
President 
Mineral Area College 
November 13, 2018 
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P.O. Box 98 - 905 E. Main Street 

December 4, 2018 

Board ofTrustees 
Mineral Area College 
Park Hills, Missouri 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Boyer & Associates, PC 
Certified Public Accountants 

(573)431-6145 (573)431-7500 
Fax (573) 431-0677 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Park Hills, MO 63601 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type actIVI!Ies and the discretely presented 
component unit, of Mineral Area College, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the College's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the College's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinions 

Jn our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, of Mineral Area College, as of June 30, 
2018, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Afatters 

Required Supplementmy Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of A111erica require that the 111anage111ent's discussion and 
analysis on pages i through viii and the Disclosures for Missouri Retire111ent Syste111 page 30-31 and the Other Post 
E111ploy111ent Benefits infotmation on page 32 be presented to supple111ent the basic financial state111ents. Such infor111ation, 
although not a part of the basic financial state111ents, is required by the Govern111ental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential patt of financial repmting for placing the basic financial state111ents in an appropriate 
operational, econo111ic, or historical context. We have applied certain li111ited procedures to the required supplementa1y 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of A111erica, which consisted of 
inquiries of 111anage111ent about the methods of preparing the infor111ation and co111paring the information for consistency with 
manage111ent's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fmming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Mineral 
Area College's basic financial statements. The continuing disclosure information section has been presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required pa1t of the basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is the responsibility of management and was derived fron1 and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including co111paring and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion the schedule of 
expenditures offederal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The continuing disclosure information section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Govemment Auditing Standards 

In flccordnncc with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report <lale<l Novembcr 16, 2018, on our. 
consideration of Mineral Area College's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is 
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Mineral Area College's internal control over financial reporting 
or on compliance. That report is an integral patt of an audit performed in accordance witl1 Government Auditing Standards 
in considering Mineral Area College's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Boyer & Associates, PC 
Certified Public Accountants 

· Park Hills, Missouri 



ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Short-tcnn invcstn1ents 
Accounts receivable, net 
Inventories 
Prepaid expense 
Restricted cash 
Restricted investments 
Capital assets, net 

Total assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

Pensions 
Deferred interest 

Total deferred outflo,vs 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Accrued post e1nploy1nent benefits 
Accrued vacation and sick leave 
Accrued liabilities-other 
Accrued net pensions liability 
Long-term liabilities: 

Current capital lease obligations 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Capital lease obligations 
Long-tenn debt 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INF! ,OWS 

Pensions 
Other post e1nployee benefits 
Unearned revenue 
Bond pre1niu111s 

Total deferred inflows 
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MINERAL AREA COLLEGE 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2018 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Re.stricted 

NuucxpL"lldablL" 
Scholarships 
Other 

Expendable 
Scholarships 
Capital projects 
Debt service 
Other 

Unrestricted 

Total net position 

College 

$ 3,562,817 

~ 

4,284,308 
806,463 
501,773 
204,383 

1,699,870 
3,447,775 

20,657,827 

35, 165,216 

8,365,532 
672,003 

9,037,535 

308,684 
2,771,581 

722,665 
889,071 

14,721,880 

234,248 
989,100 

4,270,523 
7,922,033 

32,829,785 

5,028,209 
89,084 
11,144 
19,592 

5, 148,029 

7,894,334 

2,219,479 

364,701 
258,854 
863,838 

5,376,269 ) 

6.224.937 

'J'he acco111panying nolcs arc an integral pmt of these financial stalc1nents. 

Co111ponent Unit 
Foundation 

$ 85,483 
1,969,472 

66,659 
1,414,500 

3,536,114 

33.862 

33,862 

613,705 
545,027 

11,409 

247,155 
2,054,956 

~ 3.502.252 
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M IN ERAL AREA COLLEGE 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENSES AND Cl!ANGE~U.N NJiLJ'01;1)TION 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Student tuition and fees (less scholarship allo\vances $4,625,851) 
Federal grants and contracts 
State and local grants and contracts 
Sales and services of educational dcpartlnents 
Auxilial)' enterprises: 

Student housing 
Bookstore 
Shooting range 

()ther operating revenue 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Instruction 
Public service 
Acade1nic support 
Support services 
Institutional suppo11 
Plant operations 
Student Aid 
Depreciation 
Auxiliary enterprises: 

Student housing 
Bookstore 
Shooting range 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

NON-OPERA TING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

State appropriations 
County property taxes 
Gifts 
Invesllnent income (loss) 
Interest and fees on capital asset related debt 

Net non-operating revenues 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS 

Net position, beginning of year 

Prior period adjustment 
Net position, beginning of year-as restated 

Net position, end of year 

College 

$ 4,772,258 
11,484,759 
2,309,596 

360,973 

1,242,136 
1,436,843 

12,095 
233,140 

21,851,800 

9,329,374 
43,177 

2,843,286 
2,256,646 
2,734,431 
2,335,623 
8,012,960 
1,664,684 

1,136,420 
1,437,159 

45,770 

31,839,530 

9,987,730 ) ( 

5,711,108 
4,423,835 

355,873 
178,045 
446,290 ) 

10,222,571 

234,841 

7,385,480 

1,395,384 ) 
5,990,096 

~ 6,224,937 

The acco1npanying notes are an inlegra! parl of these financial slalerncnls. 

Co111poncnt lJnit 
Foundation 

$ 

16,331 

16,331 

141,530 

141,530 

125,199) 

40,907 
222,332 

263,239 

138,040 

3,364,212 

3,364,212 

~ 3,502,252 
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MINERAL AREA COLJ<EGE 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Pay111ents for tuition and fees 
Pay1ncnts for grants and contracts 
Pay1nents for services 
Pax1ncnts to suppliers 
Pay1ncnts to employees 
Payn1ents fOr student financial aid 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
State appropriations 
County property taxes 
Gifts 

Net provided by non-capital financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Principal paid on capital debt and leases 
Interest & bond fees paid on long-tenn debt 

Net cash provided (used) by capital financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from sales of invesllnents 
Interest and dividends on invcst1nents 
Purchase of invesllnents 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED 
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustn1cnts to reconcile operating loss to net 

cash used by operating activities: 
Depreciation and ainortization 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Inventory 
Prepaid expenses 
Pension repo11ing 
Other post-employn1ent benefits reporting 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Unearned revenue 

Net cash used by operating activities 

College 
$ 4,803,229 

13,929,384 
3,387,802 
4,141,252) 

14,670,452 ) 
10,935,358 ) 
7,626,647 ) 

5,711,108 
4,423,835 

355,873 
10,490,816 

762,968 ) 
1,040,184) 

446,290 ) 
2,249,442 ) 

6,177,438 
178,045 

6,303,807 ) 
51,676 

666,403 

4,596,284 

i 5,262.687 

( $ 9,987,730) 

1,696,456 

319,535 
265,025 

15,573 ) 
158,671 
104,880 
77,829 

166,021 ) 
79,719) 

i 7.626.647 ) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finnncinl s1n1e1nenls. 

Co1nponcnt Unit 
Foundation 
$ 

16,331 
141,545) 

125,214 ) 

79,734 
79,734 

407,054 
222,332 

( 635,146) 
( 5,760 ) 

51,240) 

203,383 

$ 152 143 

( $ 125,199) 

15 ) 

~ 125.214 ) 
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M IN ERAL AREA COLLEGE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Organization 

The Junior College District of Mineral Area, Missouri (Mineral Area College) is located in Park Hills, Missouri. The 
District was created in 1965 by popular vote of the residents of six public school districts in St. Francois and Madison 
counties and portions of Washington, Ste. Genevieve, Perry and Jefferson counties. As the successor to Flat River Junior 
College (established in 1922), the District is the third oldest public junior college in Missouri. The District is a political 
subdivision of the State of Missouri, whose boundaries (and, thereby, the area in which the District levies taxes) consist of 
St. Francois County, Madison County and portions of Ste. Genevieve, Washington, Jefferson and Peny counties. The 
District also has satellite campuses in the communities of Fredericktown, Penyville and Potosi. The District's service 
region is significantly broader than its legal boundaries. The service region consists of all of St. Francois, Ste. Genevieve, 
Peny, Madison, Iron, Washington, Shannon and Texas counties. 

The financial statements of Mineral Area College (the College) have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles as applicable to governmental colleges and universities in the United States. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles. To conform to these accounting principles, the College has adopted accounting policies 
which have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements. The following is a summary of the 
n1ore significant policies. 

TJ1e Reporting Entity 

The publicly elected, six-member board oftrnstees governs the College. Five trustees are elected by disn·ict and one is 
elected at large. The trustees serve six-year tern1s, with two trustees elected eve1y other year. 

Discretely Presented Component Unit: The College receives ongoing financial support from, Mineral Area College 
Foundation, Inc. (the foundation), a legally separate foundation which is included as a discretely presented 
con1ponent unit in the College1s financial statements. The Foundation is a not-for-profit organization exe1npt fro1n 
income taxes since December 1984 under Section 50I(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Although the 
Foundation is legally separate from the College, its sole prnpose is to receive donations and manage endowment 
funds to directly provide ongoing financial support to the College. Because of the significance of its financial 
relationship with the College, the Foundation is presented as a co1nponent unit in the College1s financial state1nents. 

Blended Component Unit: The College also established a nonprofit crnporation, Mineral Area College Facility 
Development Authority, Inc., to provide for acquisition, construction, in1prove1nent, and financing of buildings and 
facilities of Mineral Area College, exclusively. As such, it is considered a blended component unit in the College's 
financial statements. 

This is in accorJancc whh Guvcnuncntal Accounting Stan<lar<ls Iloar<l Staten1enl No. 61, "The Financial Reporting 
Entity". The College has detern1ined that it does not exercise signific:~n1- influence or ovcrsieh1- rcsponsihility over ~ny 
other separately administered organization, which should be included as a component unit. 

Financial Statement Presentation 

In November 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 35, "Basic Financial 
Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities." The College was required 
to adopt GASB No. 35 effective July I, 2002. The financial statement presentation required by GASB No. 35 provides a 
comprehensive, entity-wide perspective that replaces the fund-group perspective previously required. 
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Basis of Accounting 

For financial repOJiing purposes, the College is considered a special purpose government engaged only in business-type 
activities. Accordingly, the College1s financial state111ents have been presented using the econo1nic resources 
measure1nent focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when ea1ned, 
and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incutTed. 

Cash Equivalents 

The College considers all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash 
equivalents. 

InvestJnents 

Invest1nents are stated at fair value. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

The College accounts for bad debts under the allowance method for financial statement purposes. Under the allowance 
inethod, a percentage of ending student accounts receivable balance is estilnated to eventually prove uncollectible and is 
charged to bad debt expense in the current year. 

Prope11y and Equipment 

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Donated assets are stated at fair value on the date donated. The College's 
investment in infi·astructure assets, which is not n1aterial to the total of property and equipment, is recorded at cost and 
included in the costs of the related property. Capital assets (costing $10,000 or more) are depreciated using the straight­
line method over their estimated useful lives as follows: buildings and improvements, 5-30 years; equipment, 3-5 years; 
and libra1y books, 10 years. The costs of nonnal maintenance and repairs that do not add to asset value or materially 
extend useful lives are not capitalized. 

Jnvento1y 

Inventories are reflected at the lower of cost or market and consist of books and supplies sold at the College bookstore 
and supplies sold at the shooting range. 

Accumulated Compensated Absences 

The cost of vacation and sick pay is accrued in the period it is earned and vests with the employee. Earned sick leave 
accumulates but does not vest with the employee until completion often years of service. Vacations leave vests as it is 
earned. 

Accounting for Pension l_,iabilitics 

Financial reporting infornuttion pc11aining to the district's participation in the Public School Retirement Systc1n 
of Missouri and the Public Education Employee Retirement System of Missouri (PSRS and PEERS, also referred to 
as the Systems) is prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 
No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Pension 
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, by GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting 
and Financi_al Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are No/within the Scope of GASE Statement 68, 
and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASE Statements 67 and 68, and by GASB Statement 82, Pension 
Issues. 
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Accounting for Pension Liabilities (continued) 

The fiduciary net position, as well as additions to and deductions from the fiduciary net position, of PSRS and 
PEERS have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Systems. The financial statements 
were prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Member and employer contributions are recognized when 
due, pursuant to fonnal co1nmitments and statutory requiren1ents. Benefits and refunds of e1nployee 
contributions are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the statutes governing the Systems. 
Expenses are recognized when the liability is incurred, regardless of when payment is made. Investments are 
reported at fair value. The fiduciary net position is reflected in the measurement of the district's net pension 
liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense. A Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report ("CAFR") can be obtained at www.psrs-peers.org. 

Change in Method of Accounting for Other Post-Employment Benefits 

Please refer to Note 14 for the impact of adopting GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions. 

Classification of Revenues 

The College has classified revenue as either operating or non-operating revenues according to the following criteria: 

Operating revenues - Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of exchange transactions, such 
as (I) student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and allowances, (2) sales and services of educational 
depat1ments and auxiliary enterprises, (3) federal, state and local grants and contracts. 

Non-operating revenues - Non-operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of non-exchange 
transactions, such as state appropriations, investment income, property taxes, and gifts. 

Scholarship Allowances and Student Aid 

Student tuition and fees, certain other revenues from students, are reported net of scholarship discounts and allowances 
in the state1nent of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Scholarship discounts and allowances are the 
difference between the stated charge for goods and services provided by the College and the amount that is paid by 
students and/or third parties making payments on the students' behalf. Certain governmental grants, such as Pell grants 
and other federal, state or nongovernmental programs, are recorded as either operating or non-operating revenues in the 
College's financial statements. To the extent that revenues for such programs are used to satisfy tuition and fees and 
certain other student charges, the College has recorded a scholarship discount and allowance. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Restricted Assets 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for usei it is the College's policy to use restricted resources 
first, and then unrestricted resources as needed. 

Management's Review ofSubseguent Events 

Management has reviewed subsequent events through December 4, 20 I 8, the date in which the financial statements have 
been made available. 
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Missouri Statutes require that depository institutions tnust collateralize funds of the College on deposit in financial 
institutions with appropriate securities to the extent not provided by FDIC insurance. At June 30, 2018, the deposits of 
Mineral Area College were entirely covered by federal deposito1y insurance or by collateral held by the College's 
custodial bank in the College's name. The Foundation's deposits were all insured by federal depositmy insurance. 

Invest1nents 

The College may invest in bonds of the State of Missouri or any wholly owned corporation of the United States, or in 
short-term obligations of the United States. 

The Foundation 1nay invest in equity and fixed inco1ne investJnents that it considers prudent in accordance with the 
Foundation's invest1nent policy. 

Jnvestn1ents for endowed scholarships and bond reserves are shown as noncurrent restricted assets. 

Investments at June 30, 2018, consisted of the following reported at fair value: 

College Foundation 

Certificated of Deposit $ 7,611,154 $ 

RBC Bank Deposit Program 24,6 I 0 
Money Market Accounts 890 116,157 

Government Securities 120,039 
Fixed Inco1ne Funds 935,597 
Mixed Assets Funds 207,286 

Equity Securities 2, 100,321 

$ 7,732,083 $ 3,383,971 

Of the investments reported above for the Foundation, an unrestricted portion of $893,400 has been considered board 
designated under an agreement <lated June 30, 2009, between the College and the Foundation. 

Interest Rate Risk - In accordance with its investment policy, the College manages exposure to declines in fair value by 
stiucturing the invest1nent portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations and 
investing primarily in sho11er-term securities. 

Custodial Credit Risk - The College invests in government securities which are not subject to custodial credit risk. The 
Foundation invc3t3 in equity 3ccuritics thnt nccording to the Foundation's invcst1ncnt policy arc highly 1nnrkctablc and 
listed on or registered with the New York Stock Exchange, or the NASDAQ. These investments are highly diversified in 
nature. 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of debt type investments will not fulfill its obligation to the holder. Only 
$116,157 of the Fuun<lalion't: invet:lrnen1ti it: in 1noney rnurket mutuul fun<lti W.l ruled by u nutionully rer..:ognize<l 
organization. The College holds no other debt type investments. 
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Investments (continued) 

C'oncentrations qf credit risk~ The College's invest1nent policy does not allow the College to invest in debt securities that 
are not insured, registered or backed by the U.S. government. 

Implementation of FSP FAS 117-1 - In August 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB 
Staff Position No. FAS 117-1, "Endowment of Not-for-Profit Organizations: Net Asset Classifications of Funds Subject 
to an Enacted Version of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), and "Enhanced 
Disclosures for All Endowment Funds" (FSP FAS I 17-1). FSP FAS 117-1 provides guidance on the net asset 
classification of the donor-restricted endowment funds for a nonprofit organization that is subject to the enacted version of 
UPMIFA of2006. FSP FSA 117-1 also requires additional disclosures about an organizations endowment funds (both 
donor-restricted endowment funds and board-designated endow111ent funds), whether or not the organization is subject to 
UPMIFA. 

Mineral Area College Foundation, Inc., the discretely presented component unit, enacted UPMIFA effective July I, 2009 
the provisions of which apply to endowment funds existing or established after that date. The Organization adopted FSP 
FAS 117-1 for the year ended June 30, 2010. Management has determined that portions of the Organization's 
permanently restricted net assets meet the definition of endowment funds under UPMIF A. 

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES 

Receivables at June 30, 2018 were as follows: 

Student Tuition 
Student Dorm Rental 

Governmental Grants 
Sales 
Prope1ty Taxes 

Investments 

$ 171,409 

7,365 

416,260 
137,359 

61,308 

12,762 

$ 806,463 

The above receivable balance is net of an allowance of bad debts of$767,718 for student tuition and an allowance of bad 
debts of$56,587 for housing charges that are deemed uncollectible. 

Property Taxes 

Property taxes are collected and remitted to the College by the six counties included in the District. Taxes levied 
annually on September 1 are due by December 31 and attach as an enforceable lien on January 1. Delinquent property 
taxes are accrued to the extent available through subsequent collections 60 days after June 30. 
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Property and equipment, by major class of asset, at June 30, 2018 were as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance Additions 

Depreciable Capital Assets: 
Buildings & Improvements $ 37,407,370 $ 446,043 
Student Housing 5,818,400 
Equipment 9,679,168 259,109 
Library Books 1,278,673 
Less Accu111ulated Depreciation ( 33,032,379 )( 1,664,685 

Total Depreciable Capital Assets, net 21, 151,232 ( 959,533 

Nondepreciable Capital Assets 
Land 385,066 
Construction in Progress 23,245 57,817 

Total Nondepreciable Capital Assets 408,31 I 57,817 

Total Capital Assets, net $ 21,559,543 $ 901,716 

Ending 
Retire1nents Balance 

$ $ 37,853,413 
5,818,400 
9,938,277 
1,278,673 

) ( 34,697,064 

20,191,699 

385,066 
81,062 

466,128 

$ $ 20,657,827 

The land for the Fredericktown, Missouri campus is being leased from Black River Electric Cooperative at no cost 
through January I, 2060. The building will revert to Black River Electric Cooperative upon termination of the lease. 

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-term debt at June 30, 20 I 8 consisted for the following: 

General Obligation Bonds 

On November 18, 20 I 0, Mineral Area College issued general obligation bonds in the amount of $5,950,000 as a 
crossover refinancing. The crossover date was March I, 2012. Interest on the 20 I 0 issue accrues at rates varying from 
2.0% to 2.3% and is payable semi-annually on March 1 and September 1 with principal and interest payments beginning 
on March 1, 2011. The balance on these bonds on June 30, 2018 was $700,000. 

On August 30, 2011, Mineral Area College issued voter-approved general obligation bonds of $8,000,000 for the 
purpose of renovating, improving and furnishing College buildings and related facilities. Specifically, the proceeds of 
this debt was used for improvements to the library and technology buildings and additions and improvements to the 
Fredericktown Outreach Center. Interest will be payable semi-annually on March 1 and September 1 at interest rates 
ranging from 2.75% lo 3.2%. Principal payments will begin in 2019 through 2026. The balance on these bonds on June 
30, 2018 was $8,000,000. 

) 
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A note payable was entered into between Mineral Area College and The Missouri Department of Natural Resources for 
an energy loan in the amount of$1,l 12,834. The note commenced on February I, 2005 and is payable in semiannual 
installments on August I and February I at an interest rate of 3.75% through Februaiy I, 2020. The balance on this loan 
at June 30, 2018 was $211,133. 

Changes in long-term debt during the year ended June 30, 2018 were as follows: 

Series 20 I 0 G.O. Bonds 

Series 2011 G.O. Bonds 

Notes Payable 

Unamortized Pre1niu1ns 

$ 

$ 

Balance Issued 

1,550,000 $ 

8,000,000 

296,983 

9,846,983 $ 

30,352 

9,877,335 

Scheduled maturities oflong-tenn debt at June 30, 2018, were as follow: 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

2024-2028 

NOTE 6 ·- CAP IT AL LEASES 

Ce1tificates of Participation 

Principal 
$ 989,100 

1,042,473 
1,019,560 
1,040,000 
1,100,000 
3,720,000 

$ 8,911,133 

Series 2017 Refunding Series 2008 

Interest 
$ 261,240 

236,267 
204,604 
174,350 
146,270 
238,080 

$ 1,260,811 

Retired 

$ 850,000 

85,850 

$ 935,850 

Total 
$ 1,250,340 

1,278,740 
1,224,164 
1,214,350 
1,246,270 
3,958,080 

$ 10,171,944 

Balance 

$ 700,000 

8,000,000 

211,133 

8,911,133 

19,592 

$ 8,930,725 

On June 8, 2017, the College entered into a lease purchase agreement to pay the costs of refunding the District's 
outstanding Certificates of Participation, Series 2008, issued in the original principal amount of $7,195,000. The new 
Certificates of Participation were issued on June 8, 2017 and have a maturity value of $4,504,771. The lease is 
renewable annually at the option of the College through September 1, 2031. Interest rates on the certificates are 3.05%. 
The net proceeds of$4,504,771 plus an additional $742,655 of2008 Series sinking fund monies were deposited with an 
escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments, callable on September 1, 2017. As a result, the 2008 Series 
Certificates of Participation are considered to be defeased. At June 30, 2018 the balance on the lease Certificates of 
Participation Series 2017 was $4,504, 771. 

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of old debt 
of $5,145,000. This difference, repmted in the accompanying financial statements as a deferred outflow is being 
charged to operations through the year 2051 using the straight line method. The deferred outflow at June 30, 2018 is 
$672,003. The College completed the advance refunding with additional cash used to complete the refunding of 
$827,780 lu reuuce its future llebt service payments over tl1e next 35 years by $1,236,487 and to obtain on economic 
gain (uill'erence between lhe present values of the old and new debt service payments) of$225,000. 



NOTE 6 - CA PIT AL LEASES (Continued) 

-13-
MINERAL AR.EL} COLL!'GE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

University Lease. a Division of California First National Bank 

On January I 0, 2013 the College entered into a lease with University Lease, a division of California First National Bank 
to provide funds to pay the cost of the Sechrest Field House HV AC Unit, roofing and Public Address System. Total 
property cost paid by University Lease was $655,409 with a final acceptance date of April 18, 2013. The lease term is 
60 months with interest calculated at 2.85%. Monthly payments of$1 l,758 will be billed quarterly. The College paid 
University Lease a deposit of$11,758 on May I, 2013 which will be applied to the final quarterly payment. The first 
quarterly payment of $35,274 was made June 28, 2013. The College paid University Lease rental payments of $43, 172 
from March to June 2013 which were not applied to the principal payment. At June 30, 2018 the balance on the lease 
was $0. 

Changes in capital leases during the year ended June 30, 2018 were as follows: 

2017 Certificates of Participation 
University Lease 

Unan1ortized Discounts 

Deferred Interest ( 

Beginning 

Balance 

$ 4,504,771 

104,333 

4,609,104 

714,536 ) 

$ 3,894,568 

Issued 

$ 

$ 

Retired 

$ 
104,333 

$ I 04,333 

( 

Ending 

Balance 

$ 4,504,771 

4,504,771 

672,003 ) 

$ 3,832,768 

Leased land, buildings, and equipment under capital leases in capital assets at June 30, 2018, included the following: 

College Park Dorms - 2017 Certificates of Participation 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 
Total 

Sechrest Fieldhouse HV AC Unit, Roofing and PA System 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 
Total 

$5,572,254 
( 3,242,033) 
$2,330,221 

$ 655,409 
( 655,409) 
L ____ __: 

Schedule maturities of capital leases at June 30, 2018, were as follows: 

Year PrinciEal Interest 

2019 $ 234,248 $ 133,823 

2020 273,620 126,078 

2021 281,885 117,607 

2022 294,608 108,815 

2023 296,851 99,796 

2024-2028 1,634,404 354,721 

2029-2032 1,489, 155 92,446 

$ 4,504,771 $ 1,033,286 

Total 

$ 368,071 

399,698 

399,492 

403,423 

396,647 

1,989,125 

1,581,601 

$ 5,538,057 



NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS 

-14-
MlNERAL AREA COLLEGE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended June 30, 20 I 8 

General Inforn1ation about the Pension Plan 

Plan DescriJJtion. PSRS is a 111andatory cost-sharing 1nultiple e1nployer retire1nent syste1n for all full-ti1ne 
certificated employees and certain part-time certificated employees of all public school districts in Missouri 
(except the school districts of St. Louis and Kansas City) and all public community colleges. PSRS also ineludes 
certificated en1ployees of the Systen1, Missouri State Teachers' Association, Missouri State 1-Iigh School 
Activities Association, and certain e111ployees of the State of Missouri who elected to remain covered by PSRS 
under legislation enacted in I 986, I 987 and I 989. The majority of PSRS members are exempt from Social 
Security contributions. In some instances, positions n1ay be determined not to be exe1npt from Social Security 
contributions. Any PSRS member who is required to contribute to Social Security comes under the requirements 
of Section 169.070 (9) RSMo, known as the "two-thirds statute." PSRS members required to contribute to 
Social Security are required to contribute two-thirds of the approved PSRS contribution rate and their employer 
is required to 1natch the contribution. The members' benefits are fu1iher calculated at two-thirds the norn1al 
benefit ainount. 

PEERS is a mandatory cost-sharing multiple employer retirement system for all non-certified public school district 
employees (except the school districts of St. Louis and Kansas City), employees of the Missouri Association of 
School Administrators, and community college employees (except the Community College of St. Louis). Employees 
of covered districts who work 20 or more hours per week on a regular basis and who are not contributing members 
of PSRS must contribute to PEERS. Employees of the System who do not hold Missouri educator certificates also 
contribute to PEERS. PEERS was established as a trust fund by an Act of the Missouri General Assembly effective 
October 13, 1965. Statutes governing the System are found in Sections 169.600 - 169.715 and Sections 169.560 -
169.595 RSMo. The statutes place responsibility for the operations of PEERS on the Board of Trustees of PSRS. 

Benefits Provided. PSRS is a defined benefit plan providing retirement, disability, and death/survivor benefits. 
Members are vested for service retirement benefits after accruing five years of service. Individuals who (a) are at 
least age 60 and have a minimum of 5 years of service, (b) have 30 years of service, or ( e) qualify for benefits 
under the "Rule of 80" (service and age total at least 80) are entitled to a monthly benefit for life, which is 
calculated using a 2.5% benefit factor. Beginning July 1, 2001, and ending July I, 2014, a 2.55% benefit factor 
was used to calculate benefits for members who have 31 or more years of service at retirement. Actuarially age­
reduced benefits are available for members with five to 24.9 years of service at age 55. Members who are 
younger than age 55 and who do not qualify under the "Rule of 80" but have between 25 and 29.9 years of service 
may retire with a lesser benefit factor. Members that are three years beyond normal retirement can elect to have 
their lifetime monthly benefits actuarially reduced in exchange for the right to also receive a one-time partial 
Jump sum (PLSO) payment at retirement equal to 12, 24, or 36 times the Single Life benefit amount. 
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PEERS is a defined benefit plan providing retirement, disability, and death benefits to its members. Members are 
vested for service retirement benefits after accruing five years of service. Individuals who (a) are at least age 60 and 
have a minimum of five years of service, (b) have 30 years of service, or ( c) qualify for benefits under the "Rule of 
80" (service and age total at least 80) are entitled to a monthly benefit for life, which is calculated using a 1.61 % 
benefit factor. Members qualifying for "Rule of 80" or "30-and-out" are entitled to an additional temporary benefit 
until reaching minimum Social Security age (currently age 62) which is calculated using a 0.8% benefit factor. 
Actuarially age-reduced retirement benefits are available with five to 24.9 years of service at age 55. Members who 
are younger than age 55 and who do not qualify under the "Rule of 80" but have between 25 and 29.9 years of 
service inay retire with a lesser benefit factor. Me1nbers that are three years beyond nonnal retire1nent can elect to 
have their lifetime monthly benefits actuarially reduced in exchange for the right to also receive a one-time pa1tial 
lump sum (PLSO) payment at retirement equal to 12, 24, or 36 times the Single Life benefit amount. 

Cost-of-Living Adjustments ("COLA''). The Board of Trustees has established a policy of providing COLAs to 
both PSRS and PEERS members as follows: 

If the June to June change in the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) is less than 2% for 
consecutive one-year periods, a cost-of-living increase of 2o/o will be granted when the cumulative increase is 
equal or greater than 2%, at which point the cumulative increase in the CPI-U will be reset to zero. For the 
following year, the slatting CPI-U will be based on the June value immediately preceding January I at which 
the 7°/o c:ost-of-livine inc:n~:'tse is ert1nterl. 

If the June to June change in the CPI-lJ is greater than or equal to 2%, hut less than 5%, a cost-of-living 
increase of 2% will be granted. 

If the June to June change in the CPI-U is greater than or equal to 5%, a cost-of living increase of 5% will be 
granted. 

If the CPI decreases, no COLA is provided. 

For any PSRS member retiring on or after July I, 2001, such adjustments commence on the second January after 
co1nmencernent of benefits and occur annually thereafter. For PEERS members, such adjustlnents commence on the 
fourth January after commencement of benefits and occur annually thereafter. The total of such increases may not 
exceed 80% of the original benefit for any member. 

Contributions. PSRS members were required to contribute 14.5% of their annual covered salary during fiscal 
years 2016, 2017 and 2018. Employers were required to match the contributions made by employees. The 
contribution rate is set each year by the PSRS Board of Trustees upon the recommendation of the independent 
actuary within the contribution restrictions set in Section 169.030 RSMo. The annual statutory increase in the 
total contribution rate may not exceed 1 % of pay. 

PEERS members were required to contribute 6.86% of their annual covered salary during fiscal years 2016, 2017 
an<l '.lU 18. H1nployers vvere required lo malch the contributions made by employees. 'J'he contribution rate is set 
each year by the PSRS Board of Trustees upon the recommendation of the independent actuary within the 
contribution restrictions set in Section 169.030 RSMo. The annual statutory increase in the total contribution rate 
may not exceed 0.5% of pay. 

The district's contributions to PSRS and PEERS were $1,204,583 and $234,354, respectively, for the year ended 
June 30, 2018. 
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions: 

At June 30, 2018, the district reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred infl·J\VS of resources from the follo,ving sources related to PSRS and PEERS pension benefits: 

PSRS PEERS District Total 
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Deferred OutflO\\'S Deferred Outflo,vs Deferred Inflows Deferred Outflows 

of Resources of Resources of Resources of Resources of _!3.-esources of Resources 
3alance of Deferred Outflows and Inflows Due to: 

- Differences between expected and actual $ 778,109 $ 834,095 $ 25,863 $ 65,708 $ 803,972 $ 899,803 
experience 

- Changes of assumptions 2,066,933 279,252 2,346,184 

- Net differences between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments 3,325,232 3,054,242 449,818 4I4,9l 7 3,775,050 3,469,160 

- Changes in proportion and differences between 
Employer contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions 596,676 l,388 62,570 l,388 659,247 

- Employer contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date l,204,583 234,354 l,438,937 

Total $ 7,374,857 $ 4,485,0!3 $ 990,675 $ 543,196 $ 8,365,53 l $ 5,028,209 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows nf resources resulting from contribution subsec;uent to the measurement date June 30, 201 :, will be recognized as a reduction to the net pension liability in the 
year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as collective deferred (inflows) I outflows of resources are to be recognized in ?ension expense as follows: 

Year Ending June 30: PSRS PEERS District Total 

2019 $ 131,539 $ 52,854 $ 184,393 

2020 I,026,316 160,109 l,186,424 

2021 528,468 74,991 603,459 

2022 ( 360,710 ) ( 74,828 ) ( 435,539 ) 

2023 308,106 308,106 

Thereafter 51,542 51,542 

$ l,685,261 $ 213,125 $ l,898,386 
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NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflo,vs of l{esources 
Related to Pensions (continued) 

At June 30, 2018, the district recorded a liability of $13,099,847 for its proportionate share of PSRS net pension 
liability and $1,622,034 for its propmtionate share of PEERS net pension liability. In total the district recorded net 
pension liabilities of$14,721,880. The net pension liability for the plans in total was measured as of June 30, 
2017, and determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The district's proportionate share of the total net 
pension liability was based on the ratio of its actual contributions paid to PSRS and PEERS of $1,240,716 and 
$234,364, respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2017, relative to the total contributions of$684,085,861 for 
PSRS and $110,224,218 for PEERS from all patticipating employers. At June 30, 2017, the district's 
proportionate share was 0.1814% for PSRS and 0.2126% for PEERS. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the district recognized pension expense $1,308,331 for PSRS and $290,245 for 
PEERS, its proportionate share of the total pension expense. 

Actuarial Assumptions 

Actuarial valuations of the Systems involve assumptions about probability of occurrence of events far into the 
future in order to estilnate the reported a1nounts. Examples include assumptions about future en1ployment, salary 
increases, und 11101tality. A1nounts dctcnnincd regarding the net pension liubilily urc subject lo continual revision 
as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The Board of 
Trustees adopts actuarial assumptions, each of which individually represents a reasonable long-term estimate of 
anticipated experience for the Systems, derived from experience studies conducted every fifth year and from Board 
policies concerning investments and COLAs. The 1nost recent con1prehensive experience studies were co1npleted in 
June 2016. All economic and demographic assumptions were reviewed and updated, where appropriated, based on 
the results of the studies and effective with the June 30, 2016 valuation. For the June 30, 2017 valuations, the 
invest1nent rate of return was reduced fro111 7.75o/o to 7.6% and the assun1ption for the annual cost-of-living 
adjustments was updated in accordance with the funding policies amended by the Board of Trustees at their 
November 2017 meeting. Significant actuarial assumption and methods, including changes from the prior year 
resulting from changes in Board policy, are detailed below. For additional information please refer to the Systems' 
Comprehensive Annual Fin"nci"I Rep01t (CAFR). The next experience st11<lies m·e sd1e<l11le<l for ?.O?.l 

Significant actuarial assumptions and other inputs used to measure the total pension liability: 

Measurement Date 

Valuation Date 

Expected Return on Invest1nent 

Inflation 

Total payroll Growth PSRS 

PEERS 

Future Salaiy Increases PSRS 

June 30, 20 I'/ 

June 30, 2017 

7 .60%, net of investJnent expenses and including 2.25% inflation 

2.25% 

2.75% per annum, consisting of2.25% inflation, 0.25% real wage growth due 
to the inclusion of active health care costs in pensionable earnings, and 0.25% 
of real wage growth due to productivity. 

3.25% per annum, consisting of2.25% inflation, 0.50% real wage growth due 
to the inclusion ofaetive health care costs in pensionable earnings, and 0.50% 
ofreal wage growth due to productivity. 

3.00% - 9.50%, depending on service and including 2.25% inflation, 0.25% 
real wage growth due to the inclusion of active health care costs in 
pensionable earnings, and 0.25% ofreal wage growth due to productivity. 
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NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) 

PEERS 

Cost-of-Living Increases 
PSRS& PEERS 

Mortality Assumption 

Actives: 
PSRS 

PEERS 

4.00% - l l .00%, depending on service and including 2.25% inflation, 0.50% 
real wage growth due to the inclusion of active health care costs in 
pensionable earnings, and 0.50% of real wage growth due to productivity. 

The annual COLA assumed in the valuation increases from 1.20% to 1.65% 
over nine years, beginning Januaiy I, 2019. The COLA reflected for January 
I, 2018 is 1.63%, in accordance with the actual COLA approved by the 
Board. This COLA assumption reflects an assumption that generally inflation 
will increase fro1n J .80% to a no1mative inflation assun1ption of 2.25% over 
nine years. It is also based on the current policy of the Board to grant a 
COLA on each January 1 as follows: 

If the June to June change in the CPl-U is less than 2% for 
consecutive one year periods, a cost-of-living increase of 2% will be 
granted when the cumulative increase is equal to or greater than 2%, 
at which point the cumulative increase in the CPl-U will be reset to 
zero. For the following year, the starting CPl-U will be based on the 
June value immediately preceding the Janua1y I at which the 2% cost­
uf-Jiving increase is granled. 

If the June to June change in the CPI-U is greater or equal to 2%, but 
less than 5o/o, a cost living increase of2% will be granted. 

If the June to June change in the CPl-U is greater than or equal to 5%, 
a cost-of-living increase of 5% will be granted. 

If the CPI decreased, no COLA is provided. 

The COLA applies to service retirements and beneficiary annuities. The 
COLA docs not apply to the benefits for in-service death payable to spouse 
(where the spouse if over 60), and does not apply to the spouse with children 
pre-retirement death benefit, the dependent children pre-retirement death 
benefit, or the dependent parent death benefit. The total lifetime COLA 
cannot exceed 80% of the original benefit. PSRS members receive a COLA 
on the second January after retirement, which PEERS members receive a 
COLA on the fourth January after retirement. 

RP 2006 White Collar Employee Mmtality Table, multiplied by an 
adjustment factor of 0.75 at all ages for both males and females, with static 
projected using the 2014 SSA Improvement Scale to 2028. 

RP 2006 Total Dataset Employee Mortality Table, multiplied by an 
adjustment factor of 0.75 all ages for both males and females, with static 
projected using the 2014 SSA Improvement Scale to 2028. 
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NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) 

/\1on-Dt'.Yable Retirees, 
Benqficiaries and Survivors: 

PSRS 

PEERS 

Disabled Retirees: 
PSRS& PEERS 

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 
and Methods 

PSRS&PEERS 

Fiduciary Net Position 

Expected Rate of Return 

RP-2006 White Collar Mortality Tables with plan-specific experience 
adjustments and static projection to 2028 using the 2014 SSA Improvement 
Scale. 

RP-2006 Total Dataset M01tality Tables with plan-specific experience 
adjushnent and static projection to 2028 using the 2014 SSA Improvement 
Scale. 

RP-2006 Disabled Retiree Mortality Tables with static projection to 2028 
using the 2014 SSA Improvement Scale. 

The investment return and COLA assumptions were updated by the Board as 
follows based on changes to the Board's funding policy adopted at the 
November 3, 2017 meeting: 

The investment return assumption was lowered from 7.75% to 7.60% 
per year. 

The Board adopted a new COLA policy on November 3, 2017 
resulting in a change to the future COLA assumption from an 
increasing assumption of 1.05o/o- l .50% over nine years to an 
increasing assumption of 1.20%-1.65% over nine years, beginning 
January I, 2019. 

The Systems issues a publicly available financial report (CAFR) that can be 
obtained at www.psrs-peers.org. 

The long-tenn expected rate of return on investments was detennined in 
accordance with Actuarial Standard in Practice (ASOP) No. 27, Selection 
of Economic Assumptions for Measuring Pension Obligations. ASOP No. 
27 provides guidance on the selection of an appropriate assumed rate of 
return. The long-term expected rate of return on the Systems' investments 
was detem1ined using a building-block method in which best-estimate 
ranges of expected future real rates of returns (expected returns, net of 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset 
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate 
of return hy weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best 
estimates of arith1netic real rates of return for each major asset class 
included in the Systems' target allocation as of June 30, 2017 are 
su1nmarized below along with the long tenn geotnetric return. Geometric 
return (also refen·ed to as the tiine weighted return) is considered 
standard practice within the invest1nent managen1ent industry. Geometric 
returns represent the <:ampoundcd rate of growth ·Of a portfolio. The 
method eliminates the effects created by cash flows. 
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NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) 

Asset Class 

U.S. Public Equity 

Public Credit 

Hedged Assets 

Non-U.S. Public Equity 

U.S. Treasuries 

U.S. TIPS 

Private Credit 

Private Equity 

Private Real Estate 

Total 

Discount Rate 

Viscount Rate Sensitivity 

Target Asset 

Allocation 

27.0% 

12.0% 

6.0% 

15.0% 

l 6.0o/o 

4.0% 

2.0% 

10.5% 

7.5% 

I 00.0o/o 

Long-term Expected 

Real Return 

Aritlunctic Basis 

5.85% 

2.44% 

5.22% 

6.64% 

1.0lo/o 

1.12% 

7.61% 

8.61% 

4.60% 

Inflation 

Long-trrm RrithmrtiC'.fti 
nominal return 

effect of covariance matrix 

Long-term expected 
geometric return 

Weighted Long-term 

Expected Real Return 

Arithmetic Basis 

l.58% 

0.29% 

0.31 o/o 

I.00% 

0.16% 

0.04% 

0.15% 

0.90% 

0.35 % 

4. 78o/o 

2.50% 

'/.18o/o 

0.81% 

8.09% 

The long-term expected rate of return used to measure the total pension 
liability was 7 .6% as of June 30, 2017, and is consistent with the long-term 
expected geometric return on plan investments. The actuarial assumed rate of 
return was 8.0% from 1980 through fiscal year 2016. The Board of Trustees 
adopted a new actuarial assumed rate of return of 7.75% effective with the June 
30, 2016 valuation based on the actuarial experience studies and asset-liability 
study conducted during the 2016 fiscal year. As previously discussed, the Board 
of Trustees further reduced the assumed rate to 7.6% effective with the June 30, 
2017 valuation. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that employer contributions would be made at the actuarially calculated 
rate computed in accordance with assumptions and methods stated in the 
funding policy adopted by the Board of Trustees, which requires payment of the 
normal cost and amortization of the unfunded actuarially accrued liability in 
level percent of employee payroll installments over 30 years utilizing a closed 
period, layered approach. Based on this assumption, the pension plans 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future 
benefit payments of current plan members. 

The sensitivity of the district's net pension liabilities to changes in the discount rate is presented below. The district's 
net pension liabilities calculated using the discount rate of7.60% is presented as well as the net pension liabilities using 
a discount rate that is I .0% lower (6.60%) or I .0% higher (8.60%) than the cutTent rate. 

Discount Rate I% l)ccrcao;;c 
(6.60%) 

PSRS Proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability I (Asset) $ 23,266,054 
PEERS Proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability I (Asset) $ 2,987,988 

Current Rate 
17.60%) 

$ 13,099,847 
$ 1,622,034 

1% Increase 
(8.60%) 

$ 4,648,038 
$ 476,284 
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NOTE 8 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The College is a member of the Missouri United Sehool Insurance Council (MUSIC), a public entity risk pool which 
provides protected self-insurance to member public school districts in Missouri. MUSIC is enabled by Missouri Statutes 
RSMo 537.620. Participating n1e1nbers pool risks through annual assess1nents based upon a nu111ber of factors, 
including the member's total annual payroll for the fiscal year. Pat1s of the assessments are used to purchase excess 
insurance contracts for the pool as a whole. Supplementaiy assessments to members are also provided by the Articles of 
Association in the event that the pool's loss fund and related reserves are unable to cover clain1s. These financial 
statements contain no provision of a liability for supple1nentary assess111ents. 

MUSIC provides coverage for buildings, builder's risk, general liability, school board liability, automobiles, crime, 
workers' compensation, boiler and machinery, and a treasurer's bond. There have been no significant reductions in these 
coverages from the prior year. Also, in order to limit exposure to potential litigation settlements that exceed the 
sovereign immunity caps afforded to public entities in Missouri, the College has purchased an additional $2,000,000 in 
umbrella liability coverage beyond the $2,800,000 in primary coverage. 

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The College receives significant financial assistance from governmental agencies in the form of grants. The 
<lisburset11e11t uf fu11<ls received utu.lcr lhese prograrns generally requires con1pliance wilh lenns an<l cu1u.Jilions sµecifit:!tl 
in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the granter agency. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits 
could become liabilities of the College. In the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a 
1naterial effect on the financial statements. 

NOTE 10 - OPERATING EXPENSES 

Operating expenses by natural classification for the year ended June 30, 2018 were as follows: 

Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 

Consulting 

Travel 
Utilities and telephone 

Supplies and other services 
Equipment not capitalized 

Student aid 
Depreciation expenses 

NOTE 11 - SEGMENT INFORMATION 

Student Housing System 

$11,621,044 

3,586,800 
195,507 

234,696 

869,777 
5,463,902 

190,159 

8,012,960 
1,664,685 

$31,839,530 

College Park, a student housing system, was constructed in 2001 through the issuance of the Series 2000 revenue bonds. 
These bonds were defeased in February, 2008 with certificates of participation and again in June 2017, Series 2017. 
The College contributed $414,410 to the College Park net assets during the year. 

Summarized financial information for College Park as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 is presented as follows: 
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NOTE 11 - SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 

COLLEGE PARK STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Prepaid expense 
Investments - bond reserve 
Property and equipment (net) 

Total Assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

Discount & deferred interest 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Security deposits 
Long-term liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in inore than one year 

Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS 

NET POSITION 

Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt 
Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

( 

$ 80,465 
8,253 

12,183 

2,230,221 

2,331,122 

672,003 

15,880 
45,799 
23,550 

234,248 
4,270,523 

4 590 000 

1,648,345 ) 

61,470 

( $ 1,586,875 ) 
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NOTE I I - SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 

COLLEGE PARK STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

OPERA TING REVENUES 

Rental of facilities and meal plans 

Meal plan cost 

Damage recovery assessn1ent 
Other operating revenues 

Total operating revenues 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 

Wages and employee benefits 

Utilities 

Maintenance 
Leasing and promotions 

Supplies 

Insurance 
Audit cost and credit card fees 
Bad Debt - Uncollectible dorm rental fees 

Dorms and meal plans MAC paid for athletics 

Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

Investment income (loss) 

Interest on debt related to property 

Bond fees and an1011ization 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 

DECREASE IN NET POSITION 

Net position, beginning of year 

Capital contributed 

Net position, end of year 

$ 1,214,757 

( 620, 177 ) 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

1,670 

22, 192 

618,442 

272,455 

146,961 

33,2-U 

3,724 

16,054 

22,975 

4,296 
16,506 

418,268 

185,742 

I ,120,253 

501,811) 

2,517 

179,584 ) 

1,500 ) 

I 78,567 ) 

680,378 ) 

1,320,907 ) 

414,410 

$ 1,586,875 ) 
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NOTE 11 - SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 

COLLEGE PARK STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATION ACTIVITIES 

Payments from Renters and Meal Plan Participants 

Payment to vendors 

Payments to employees 

Other receipts 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Capital contributed by MAC General Fund 

Deferred interest 

Interest expense and bond fees paid on Jong-term debt 

Net cash provided (used) by capital financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Invest1nents - bond reserve 
Interest on inveshnents 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND 

CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO 
NET CASI-11 /SFD HY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income (loss) 

Adjustment to reconcile operating income to 
net cash used by operating activities 

Depreciation and a1nortization expense 

Changes in assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable, net 
Prepaid expenses 

Accounts payable 

Accrued liabilities 

Security deposits 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

$ 1,212,842 

( 1,245,686 ) 

( 272,455 ) 

( 

( 

$ 

22, 192 

283,107) 

414,410 

42,532 

181 084) 

275,858 

64 

2,5I 7 

2,58I 

4,668 ) 

85 I33 

80,465 

( $ 501,810) 

( 

( 
( 

185,742 

1,915 ) 
714) 

312 ) 

37,402 
( ___ l~,5_0_0 ) 

( $ 283,107) 
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NOTE 12 -DONOR RESTRICTED ENDOWMENTS 

The college has received multiple endowments from individuals for the purpose of providing scholarships. In most 
cases, the interest earnings of these endown1ents are available for spending under a total-return policy. Jiowever, donor 
restrictions must also be abided by. For the year ended June 30, 20 I 8, the net appreciation on investments of donor­
restricted endowments (nonexpendable) was $36,202. At June 30, 2018, the net amount of accumulated appreciation 
available for authorization for expenditure was $114,169 and is repo11ed as pai1 of the expendable restricted net assets. 
The College's expendable endowments as of June 30, 2018 were $364,701 and its nonexpendable endowments were 
$2,219,479. 

The Foundation's endowments consist of individual investments established for multiple purposes. As required by 
generally accepted accounting principles, net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the 
Board of Directors to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor­
itnposed restrictions. 

The Foundation classifies as nonexpendable restricted net assets the original value of gifts donated to the pennanent 
endowment and the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment. The earnings of permanent 
endowment funds are shown as expendable restricted net assets. The Foundation only invests endowments in lovv-risk 
investments to maintain the corpus of the endowment, unless otherwise instructed by the donor. The Foundation has a 
total-return policy on spending the earnings of the endowments, unless otherwise specified by the donors. The 
Foundation's nonexpendable endow1nents were $1, 188,732. 

NOTE 13 - BOARD DESIGNATED ENDOWMENTS 

The College and Foundation both have board designated unrestricted donations as endowments as of June 30, 2018. 
The interest on these endowments is used to fund scholarships and instructional activities. The board designated 
endowments are presented as unrestricted net assets in accordance with GASB 34. At June 30, 2018, the College had 
$170,841 of board designated endowments_ The Foundation had $1,074,396. 

NOTE 14 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

During the current fiscal year the College adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The adoption of GASB Statement No. 75 resulted in a restatement of 
beginning Net Position as of June 30, 2017. The reduction in Net Position was $1,395,384 due to an increase in the 
beginning OPEB Liability. The plan does not issue a separate standalone financial repmt. This Statement establishes 
the following 1neasure1nent and recognition disclosures: 

Plan Description 
The College sponsors the Mineral Area College Other Post-Employment Benefits Program, a single-employer plan. The 
plan covers employees who are eligible for normal or early retirement under PSRS or PEERS. Normal Retirement age 
is the earlier of age 60 with 5 years of service, age plus service equal to 80 points ("Rule of 80"), or any age with 30 
years of service. Early retirement is age 55 with 5 years of service. 

Retirees may cover spouses and eligible dependent children. Surviving spouses can continue coverage after retiree's 
death. 

Benefits Provided 
Medical including prescription drugs, dental, vision and term life insurance coverage for retirees and their dependents. 
Retirees can continue coverage past Medicare eligibility age (age 65). 
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NOTE 14 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 

Funding Policy 
Plan members receiving benefits contribute I 00% of the total premiums. The cost of the monthly premiums varies 
based upon which insurances the retiree chooses to take. 

Retiree contributions for 2018 are as follows: 

Not Eligible for Medicare 

Base Bu~-lJE HSA 

Retiree $607.55 $716.14 $543.23 

Retiree + Spouse $893.08 $1,052.69 $798.52 

Medicare Eligible 

Base Bu~-UE HSA 

R.etiree $486.05 $572.91 $434.57 

Retiree + Spouse $714.48 $842. 15 $638.80 

Life 
lnsnrt=tnr.e: 

Dental ($10,000) 

Retiree $30.37 $1.40 

Retiree + Spouse $68.62 NIA 

Employees covered by ben~fits terms. At June 30, 20 I 8, the following employees were covered by the benefit term: 

R.etirees and surviving spouses 
Spouses of current retirees 
Active employees 

102 
4 

178 
~84 

Total OPEB Liability 

The total OPEB liability of $2,771,581 was measured as of June 30, 2018, and was detennined by an actuarial valuation 
as of that date. The OPEB liability represents 23.52% of covered payroll, $11,783.600. 

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs. The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was 
dete1mined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applies to all periods included in the 
measurement, unless othen.vise specified: 

lntlation 

Salary increases 

Discount rate 

Healthcare cost trend rates 

Retirees' share of benefit-related costs 

2.30 percent 

3.00 percent 

3.87 percent, based on 20 years Bond Go Index 

5.8 percent for 2018, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.1 percent for 2088 
and later years 

I 00 percent of projected health insurance premiums for retirees 
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NOTE 14 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-20 I 4 Mortality for Employees and Healthy Annuitants, with generational projection per 
Scale MP-2017. 

These actuarial assu111ptions were used in the June 30, 2018 accounting valuation. 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Balance at June 30, 20 I 7 

Changes for the year: 

Service cost 
Interest on total OPEB liability 
Effect of plan changes 

Total 
OPEB 

Liability 

$2,755,784 

106,724 

100,960 

Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses 

Effect of assumptions changes or inputs ( 106,315 ) 
Benefit payments 

Net changes 

Balance of June 30, 2018 

( 85,572 ) 

15,797 

$2,771,581 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the total OPEB liability of the 
College, calculated using the discount rate of 3.87%, as well as what the College's total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is I percentage point lower (2.87%) or I percentage point higher (4.87%) than the current 
rate. 

Total OPEB liability 

1% Decrease 

2.87% 

$ 3, 166,264 

Discount Rate 

3.87% 

$ 2,771,581 

I% Increase 

4.87% 

$ 2,447,996 

Se1witivi(Y u.fthe total OPEB liabili(v to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The fulluwi11g prnse11ts the total OPEB 
liability of the College, calculated using the current healthcare cost trend rates as well as what the College's total OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the 
current trend rates. 

1% Decrease 

Total OPEB liability $ 2,532,239 

Current 

Tend Rate 

$ 2,771,581 

1% Increase 

$ 3,059,670 
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NOTE 14 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 

OPEB Expenses and Deferred Inflows and Deferred Outflows of Resources 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the College recognized OPEB expense of$190,453. 

As of June 30, 2018, the deferred inflows and outflows of resources are as follows: 

Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience 

Changes of assu1nptions 

Total 

( 

( 

Deferred Inflows 

of Resources 

$ 

89,084 ) 

89,084 ) 

Deferred Outflows 

of Resources 

$ 

Amounts currently reported as deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources related to other 
postemployment benefits will be recognized in OPEB expenses as follows: 

Year ended June 30: 

2019 ( $ 17,231 ) 

2020 ( 17,231 ) 
2021 ( 17,231 ) 
2022 ( 17,231 ) 

2023 ( 17,231 ) 
Thereafter ( 2,929 ) 

NOTE 15 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Primary Govcnunent 

Govenunental Accounting Standards require disclosure of an estin1ate of fair value of certain financial inst1u1nents. The 
College's significant financial insh·uments are cash, accounts receivable, certificates of deposit, 1narketable equity 
securities, and other short-terrn assets and liabilities. These financial instruments are presented at fair value. 

Discretely Presented Co1nponent Unit 

'fhe Mineral Area C:ollcgc Found11t.ion, Inc. ha.:.; adopted St11tc1ncnt of Financi111 Accounting Standards No. 157, F11ir 
Value Measurements, which was subsequently incorporated into the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 
Topic 820. This standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures 
about fair value measurements. Topic 820 has been applied prospectively as of July 1, 2009. 
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NOTE 15 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 

Discretely Presented Con1ponent Unit (Continued) 

Topic 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
trnnsaction between market participants at the measurement date. Topic 820 also established a fair value hierarchy 
which requires an entity to maxi1nize the use of observable inputs and n1ini1nize the use of unobservable inputs when 
111easuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that n1ay be used to rneasure fair value. 

Level I - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 - Observable input others than Level J prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; 
quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be coll"oborated by 
observable market data or substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. 

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supp011ed by little or no market activity and that are significant to the 
fair value of the assets or liabilities. 

All assets of the Foundation were valued at June 30, 20 I 8 using Level 1 inputs to measure fair value. 

NOTE J 6 - UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS 

The Foundation's n1anagement is not aware of any unce1iain tax positions, however, the information retun1s filed with 
the Internal Revenue Service for fiscal years 2015, 2016, and 2017 remain opened and subject to audit by the Internal 
Revenue Service. 
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DISCLOSURES FOR MISSOURI RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios: 

Public School Retirement System of Missouri 

Actual 
Proportion of Proportionate Share Covered Net Pension Liability 

the Net Pension of the Net Pension Men1ber (Asset) as a Percentage 

Year Ended Liability (Asset) Liability (Asset) Payroll of Covered Payroll 

6-30-2014 0.1972% $ 8,090,279 $8,784,769 92.09% 
6-30-2015 0.1936% 11,176,257 8,786,629 127.20% 
6-30-2016 0.1832% 13,631,269 8,483,937 160.67% 
6-30-2017 0.1814% 13,099,847 8,575,597 152.76% 

Public Education Employee Retirement System of Missouri 

Actual 
Proportion of Proportionate Share Covered Net Pension Liability 

the Net Pension of the Net Pension Member (Asset) as a Percentage 

Year Ended Liability (Asset) Liability (Asset) Payroll of Covered Payroll 

6-30-2014 0.2357% $ 860,696 $3,436,951 25.04% 
6-30-2015 0.2276% 1,203,790 3,412,445 35.28% 
6-30-2016 0.2192% 1,758,719 3,384,578 51.96% 
6-30-2017 0.2126% 1,622,034 3,416,380 47.48% 

Fiduciary Net Position 

as a Percentage of 
Total Pension Liability 

89.34% 
85.78% 
82.18% 
83.77% 

Fiduciary Net Position 

as a Percentage of 
Total Pension Liability 

91.33% 
88.28% 
83.32% 
85.35% 
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Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule of Employer Contributions: 

Public School Retirement System of Missouri 
Actual 

Statutorily Actual Contributions Covered Contributions as a 
Requirement Employer Excess I (Deficiency) Member Percentage of 

Year Ended Contribution Contributions (Deficiency) Payroll Covered Payroll 

6-30-2013 $ 1,239,207 $ 1,239,207 $ $ 8,565,724 14.47% 
6-30-2014 1,269,921 1,269,921 8,784,769 14.46% 
6-30-2015 1,271,402 1,271,402 8,786,629 14.47% 
6-30-2016 1,227,331 1,227,331 8,483,937 14.47% 
6-30-2017 1,240,716 1,240,716 8,575,597 14.47% 

Public Education Employee Retirement System of Missouri 

Actual 
Statutorily Actual Contributions Covered Contributions as a 

Requirement Employer Excess I (Deficiency) Member Percentage of 

Year Ended Contribution Contributions (Deficiency) Payroll Covered Payroll 

6-30-2013 $ 221,466 $ 221,466 $ $ 3,228,371 6.86% 
6-30-2014 235,775 235,775 3,436,95 l 6.86% 
6-30-2015 234,094 235,094 3,412,445 6.86% 
6-30-2016 232,182 232,182 3,384,578 6.86% 
6-30-2017 234,364 234,264 3,416,380 6.86% 
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DISCLOSURE FOR OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
(Dollar amounts in thousands) 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 
Total OPEB Liability 
Service cost $107 NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 
Interest on total OPEB liability 101 NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 
Changes of benefit terms - NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 
Effect of economic/demographic gains or (losses) - NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 
Effect of assumption changes or inputs ( 106) NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 
Benefit payments ( 86 ) NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 
Net change in total OPEB liability 16 NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 

Total OPEB liability, beginning 2,756 NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 
Total OPEB liability, ending 2,772 NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 

Covered payroll 11,784 NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 

Total OPEB liability as a% of covered payroll 23.52% NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 

This schedule is_ presented to illustrated the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, recalculations of prior years are not required, and if prior years 

are not reported in accordance with the current GASB standards, they should not be reported. 

Changes of Assumptions. Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changed in the discount rate each period. The following are the discount rates 

used in each period: 
2018 ;.87% 

2017 ;.58% 

2016 NIA 
2015 NIA 
2014 NIA 
2013 NIA 
2012 NIA 
2011 NIA 
2010 NIA 
2009 NIA 

2009 

NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 

NIA 
NIA 

NIA 

NIA 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDER SEC RULE NO. 240. I 5C2-12 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

ENROLLMENT INFORMATION 

The following table shows the enrollment of the College for the fall semester 2018 and the previous five years. This 
table includes only students taking courses for college credit, and does not include business and indushy enrollments and 
other adult continuing education students. 

Fall Freshman Sophomores Other Total 

2013 1,557 1,148 1,014 3,719 

2014 1,493 1,088 1,268 3,849 

2015 1,215 1,107 1,104 3,426 

2016 1,103 1,053 1,202 3,358 

2017 987 948 1,124 3,059 

2018 905 840 1,158 2,903 

The following table shows the number of full-time equivalent students and the total annual student credit hours for the 
Fall Semester 2018 and the last five years. 

FTE Credit 
Fall Students Hours 

2013 2,702 40,528 

2014 2,875 43,122 

2015 2,497 37,457 

2016 2,500 37,502 

2017 2,230 33,460 

2018 2,160 29,193 

The District's projections of future enrolhnent for the next four fall semesters are as follows: 

Fall Enrollment 

2018 3,418 

2019 3,448 
2020 3,276 

2021 3,112 

The Disn·ict's projections, of future enrollment, do not include 227 students enrolled in cooperative programs at the area 
career centers. In the Fall 2018 semester 389 of the student body were over 30 years old and the median age of the 
District's students was 22.5. 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDER SEC RULE NO. 240. I 5C2-l 2 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

INSURANCE COVERAGE 

The College is a member of the Missouri United School Insurance Council (MUSIC), which provides protected self­
insurance to member school districts in Missouri. The following coverage was in effect at June 30, 2018. 

Prope1iy & Inland Marine Coverage 

General Liability/Automobile Liability 

Umbrella Liability in excess of 
general liability 

Crime Coverage 

School Board Liability 

Worker's Compensation 

Treasurer1s Bonds 

Equipment Breakdown Coverage 

Computer Crime 

COLLEGE PARK STUDENT HOUSING FACILITIES 

Rental Rates 

Blanket replacement cost per statement of values 

$ 2,800,000 per occurrence 

$ 2,000,000 

$ 2,000,000 per occurrence 

$ 2,800,000 per occurrence/$5,600,000 annual aggregate per 
Member District 

$ I ,000,000 employer's liability 

$ 50,000 

$ I 00,000,000 per occurrence 

$ 2,000,000 per occuITence/$6,000,000 annual aggregate 

The following table shows the rental rates per apartment type in the student housing units during the fall and spring 
semesters for 20 I 7 - 2018: 

Nine Month Twelve Month 

Lease Lease 

Efficiency $4,006 $5,491 

Two-Bedroom 3,556 4,741 

Four-Bedroom 3,331 4,366 

Occupancy 

Per daily leasing reports by Director of Student Housing, the following tables show the occupancy rates for non-staff 
apartments for the student housing units during the fall semester for each of the past five fiscal years (generally, 
occupancy is lower during the spring se1nester each fiscal year). 

Efficiency 

Two-Bedroom 

Four-Bedroom 

2013 

25% 

89.2% 

97.4% 

2014 

0.0% 

78.5% 

93.5% 

2015 

0.0% 

76.8% 

94.2% 

2016 

0.0% 

80.0% 

86.2% 

2017 

0.0% 

85.7% 

91.9% 
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Student Tuition and Fees 

The following table sets forth the tuition and fee income less tuition discounts for each of the last five years: 

Tuition and 

Year Fee Incon1e 

2013-2014 $ 8,129,058 

2014-2015 $ 8,297,338 

2015-2016 $ 7,782,516 

2016-2017 $ 7,908,555 

2017-2018 $ 7,694,656 

Tuition and technology fee charges are established annually by the Board of Trustees. The total District charges for 
tuition and technology fees for an in-district resident for the 2017-2018 school year for regular semester of 15 credit 
hours was $1,650. The following table shows the District's in-district resident credit hour rate for tuition and technology 
fees for the current year and the prior five years: 

Credit 

Year Hour Rate 

2013-2014 $94 

2014-2015 $97 

2015-2016 $102 

2016-2017 $102 

2017-2018 $110 

For Missouri residents residing outside the boundaries of the District, the credit hour rate for tuition is $150, and for out­
of-state students, the credit hour rate for tuition is $202. 

TAX COLLECTION RECORD 

The following table sets forth tax collection infonnation for the District for the last five years (including State assessed 
railroad and utility property): 

Levy (per $I 00 
Fiscal Yenr Assessed of Assessed Total Taxes Current & l)elinguent Taxes Collected 

Ended June 30, Valuation Valuation Levied Amount Percent 

2014 850,966,852 .4753 4,044,645 4,076,340 100.78% 

2015 852,215,872 .4772 4,066,774 4,110,041 101.06% 

2016 879,026.459 .4763 4,186,803 4,247,695 101.45% 

2017 894,149,218 .4784 4,277,610 4,294,433 100.40% 

2018 920,632, 166 .4784 4,404,J04 4,473,816 100.44~{1 
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PROPERTY VALUATIONS 

The following table shows the total assessed valuation and the estimated actual valuation by category, of all taxable 
tangible property (excluding State assessed railroad and utility property) situated in the District according to the 
assessment of January l, 2017. 

Real Estate: 
Residential 
Agricultural 
Commercial 
Total Real Estate 

Personal Property 

Locally Assessed: 
Railroad & Utility: 
Real Estate 
Personal Prope11y 
Total Locally Assessed 
State Assessed: 
Railroad & Utility: 
Real Estate 
Personal Prope11y 
Total State Assessed 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Assessed 
Valuation 

461,355,191 
l 5,583,894 

l 46,53 7 ,543 
623,476,628 

198,748,197 

954,240 
1,517,790 
2,472,030 

82,789,500 
13,145,81 l 
95,935,3 l l 

920,632, l 66 

Estin1ated 
Rate Actual Value 

. 19 $ 2,428,185,216 

.12 l 29,865,783 

.32 457,929,822 
3,0 l 5,980,82 l 

.33 602,267,264 

.32 2,982,000 

.33 4,599,364 
7,581,364 

.32 258,717,188 

.33 39,835,791 
298,552,979 

$ 3,924,382,428 

History of Property Valuations: The total assessed valuation of all taxable property situated in the District, including valuation estimates 
for State assessed railroad and utility property. According to the assessments of Janumy l in each of the past five calendar years has been 
as follows: 

Assessed Percent 
Year Valuation Increase 

2013 850,966,852 3.47% 
2014 852,2 l 5,872 .15% 
2015 879,026,459 3.15% 
2016 894,149,218 l.72% 
2017 920,632, 166 2.96% 
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COMPARATIVE SUMMARY OF CURRENT FUNDS - REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

2014 2015 2016 2017 

REVENUES: 

Educational and General 

Student Tuition and Fees $ 9,636,478 $ 9,817,095 $ 9,506,148 $ 9,549,324 

State Appropriations 4,750,981 5,122,689 5,452,547 5,411,859 

Govern1nental Grant and Contracts 3,443,500 2,790,099 3,073,234 3,086,308 

Sales and Services 392,103 395,517 364, 185 287,227 

Invest1nent Inco1ne 48,252 45,965 92,113 99,072 

Property Taxes 2,639,837 2,667,315 2,754,241 2,790,698 

Gifts and Private Grants 305,340 293, 195 464,741 354,018 

Other Sources 275,005 321,633 112,184 257,947 

Total Education and General 21,491,496 21,453,508 21,819,393 21,836,453 

Auxiliary Enterprises 3,428,075 3,393,211 3, 115,982 2,869,865 

TOTAL REVENUES 24,919,571 24,846,719 24,935,375 24,706,318 

EXPENDITURES: 

Educational and General 

Instruction 10,404,387 9,155,045 9,296,204 9,809,339 

Academic Support 2,252,512 2,204,259 2, 190,813 2,351,042 

Support Services 2,256,364 2,091,178 2,235,077 2,360,157 

Plant Operations 2,157,918 2,019,925 1,822,459 1,947,362 

Administration and General 3,885,646 3,730,523 3,803,982 4,066, 172 

Scholarships 1,507,420 1,519,758 1,723,631 1,640,769 

Total Education and General 22,464,247 20,720,688 21,072,166 22,174,841 

Auxiliaty Enterprises 2,866,046 2,829,791 2,606,599 2,651,615 

Interest and Fees on Indebtedness 277,671 261,406 278,335 347,794 

TOT AL EXPENDITURES 25,607,964 23,811,885 23,957,100 25,174,250 

NET INCREASE JN NET ASSETS ( $ 688,393 ) $ 1,034,834 $ 978,275 ( $ 467,932 ) 

Note: The Comparative Summary is presented net of Governmental Grants and Contracts resulting in 

tuition payments and payments to students aid. 

2018 

$ 9,398,109 

5,386,486 

2,858,997 

243,180 

146,373 

2,875, 199 

355,873 

233,140 

21,497,357 

2,691,074 

24, 188,431 

9,372,551 

2,843,286 

2,256,646 

2,283,706 

2,734,431 

1,703,453 

21,194,073 

2,619,349 

181,084 

23,994,506 

$ I 93,925 
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Summary Statement of Receipts, Expenditures and Fund Balance 
1'he following table shows a sun1111a1y of historic state1nents of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets of 
the District for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 through 2018. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2016 2017 2018 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Student Tuition and Fees* $ 5,008,302 $ 5,149,669 $ 4,772,258 
Federal Grants and Contracts 12,976,936 12,568,022 11,484,758 
State and Local Grants and Contracts 2,678,063 2,745,122 2,309,596 
Sales and Services of Educational Departments 493,608 403,289 360,974 
Auxiliary Enterprises: 

Student Housing 1,287,220 1,252,714 1,242, 136 
Bookstore 1,828,762 1,611,652 1,436,843 
Shooting Range 5,499 12,095 

Other Operating Revenues 251,132 257,947 233, 140 
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 24,524,023 23,993,914 21,851,800 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Instruction 9,296,203 9,809,339 9,329,374 
Public service 43, J 77 
Academic Support 2, J 90,813 2,351,042 2,843,286 
Support Services 2,235,077 2,360,157 2,256,646 
Institutional Support 3,803,982 4,066,172 2,734,43 J 
Plant Operations 1,973,357 2,176,634 2,335,623 
Student Aid 9,807,551 9,467,950 8,012,960 
Depreciation 1,661, J 65 1,725,408 1,664,685 
Auxiliary Enterprises: 

Student Housing 1,200,754 1,25 J ,648 1, 136,420 
Bookstore 1,405,845 J ,360,286 1,437,159 
Shooting Range 39,681 45,770 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 33,574,747 34,608,317 31,839,531 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) ( 9,050,724 ) ( 10,614,403 ) ( 9,987,731 ) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
State Appropriations 6,067,740 6,355,022 5,711,108 
County Property Taxes 4,247,695 4,?94,433 4,421,816 

Gif\s 325,793 354,018 355,873 
Investment Income 104,682 115,434 178,045 
Interest and Fees on Capital Asset-Related Debt ( 584,136) ( 573,117) ( 446,290) 
Sale of Capital Assets 

TOTAL NONO PERA TING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 10,161,774 10,545,790 10,222,572 

INCREASE (DECREASE) JN NET ASSETS l,l l l,050 ( 68,613 ) 234,841 

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,343,043 7,454,093 7,385,480 
Prior Period Adjustment ( - ) 1,395,384 ) 
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR AS RESTATED 6,343,043 7,454,093 5,990,096 

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 7,454,093 $ 7,385,480 $ 6,224,937 

*This figure is net of scholarship allowances totaling $4,497,845 in 2016, $4,399,655 in 2017 and $4,625,851in2018. 
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Federal Grantor/ 

Pass-Through Grantor/ 

Program Title 

U.S. Department of Education 

Student Financial Assistance Cluster 

Federal Work-Study Program 

Federal Pell Grant Program 

Federal S.E.O.G. 

Federal Direct Student Loans 

TRIO Cluster 

TRIO - Student Support Services 

TRIO - Talent Search Program 

TRIO - Upward Bound 

Passed through Missouri Department of 

Elementaiy and Secondmy Education: 

Vocational Education -

Basic Grants to States - Perkins 

Total Department of Education 

U.S. Department of Labor 

Trade Adjustment Assistance Community College 

and Career Training (TAACCT) Grants: 

MO STEM WINS 

Passed through Missouri Department of Economic 

Development 

MORAP Grants 

Apprenticeship USA Grants 

Total Department of Labor 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

Pa5'cd through Missouri Department of Elementary 

and Secondary Education 

Childcare and Development Block Grant 

Total Depatment of Health and Human Services 

TOT AL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

Federal 

CFDA 

Number 

84.033 

84.063 

84.007 

84.268 

84.042 

84.044 

84.047 

84.048 

17.282 

]'/ .',/;/~ 

17.285 

93.575 

Federal 

Expenditures 

$ 61,828 

5,706,934 

66,727 

3,337,950 

288,068 

595,483 

622,689 

310,216 

10,989,895 

359,995 

2,316 

59,762 

422,073 

14,799 

14,799 

$11,426,767 
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL A WARDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal award programs of 
Mineral Area College. All federal awards received directly from federal agencies or passed through other government 
agencies are included on the schedule. 

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of accounting as 
described in Note 1 to the College's basic financial statement. 
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Boyer & Associates, PC 
Certified Public Accountants 

(573) 431-6145 (573) 431-7500 
Fax (573) 431-0677 

Park Hills, MO 6360 I 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

December 4, 2018 

Board of Trustees 
Mineral Area College 
Park Hills, Missouri 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standard generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the business-type activities, and the discretely presented component unit, of Mineral Area College, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Mineral Area College's basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November I 6, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and perfonning our audit of the financial statetnents, we considered Mineral Area College's inten1al control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Mineral Area College's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Mineral Area College's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the nonnal 
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and con·ect, 1nisstatements on a timely basis. A tnaterial weakness is a 
deficiency, or a cotnbination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a n1aterial n1isstaten1ent of 
the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in inte111al control that is less severe that a material weakness, yet important enough to inerit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to 
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or signiticant deticiencies. Given these limitations, during our 
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Mineral Area College's financial statements are free from material misstatement, 
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, nonco1npliance with 
which could have a direct and material effect on the detennination of financial staten1ent a1nounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no 'instances of nonco1npliance or Other 1natters that are required to ·be reported under Governnzent Auditing Standards. 
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Purpose of this J~cport 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope ofour testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and 
not' to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on con1pliance. 1~his report is an integral pa11 of an audH 
pcrfonned in accordance with Gover11111ent Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and co1npliance. Accordingly, 
this con1111unication is not suHable for any other purpose. 

Boyer & Associates, PC 
Certified Public Accountants 
Park Hills, Missouri 
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Park Hills, MO 6360 I 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

December 4, 2018 

Board of Trustees 
Mineral Area College 
Park Hills, Missouri 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Mineral Area College's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance 
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on Mineral Area College's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2018. Mineral Area College's major federal programs are identified in the summaiy of auditor's results section of the accompanying 
schedule offindings und questioned costs. 

Ma11age111e11t's Responsibility 

Manage1nent is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable 
to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for Mineral Area College's major federal programs based on our audit of the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code qf Federal Regulations 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Award' (Uniform Guidance). 
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
progratn occu1Ted. An audit includes exa1nining, on a test basis, evidence about Mineral Area College's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circu1nstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal prog:ram. However, our m1rli1 
does not provide a legal dete1mination of Mineral Area College's compliance. 

Opi11in11 011 Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Mineral Area College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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Report on Internal Control over Cornpliancc 

Management of Mineral Area College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and perforn1ing our audit of con1pliance, we considered Mineral Area 
CoJlege's internal control over co1npliance with the types ofrequire1nents that could have a direct and 1naterial effect on each major federal 
progra111 to detern1ine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each 1najor federal progra1n and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Unifonn 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Mineral Area College's internal control over co1npliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow 
manage1nent or e1nployees, in the nonnal course of perfon11ing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, nonco1npliancc 
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A n1alerial w1eakness in internal control over cornp!iance is 
a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and c01Tected, on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over con1pliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
over compliance with a type of con1pliance require1nent of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal contTol 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
and therefore, 1naterial weaknesses or significant deficiencies n1ay exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control over co1npliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over co1npliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Unifonn Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for 
any other purpose. 

Boyer & Associates, PC 
Certified Public Accountants 
Park Hills, Missouri 
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MINERAL AREA COLLEGE 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
Year Ended June 30, 20I8 

I. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

Financial Staten1ents 

• An unqualified report was issued on the financial statements of the 
Mineral Area College 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

• Material weakness( es) identified? 

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

• An unmodified report was issued on compliance for major programs. 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be repmted in 
accordance with section 2 CFR 200.5 l 6(a)? 

Internal control of major programs: 

CDFA# 

84.033 
84.042 

PROGRAM 

Student Financial Assistance Cluster 
TRIO Cluster 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

II. FINANCIAL ST A TEMENT FINDING 

• There were no findings. 

III. FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

• There were no findings. 

__yes _x_no 

__yes _x_none reported 

__yes _x_no 

__yes _x_no 

__yes _x_none repo1ted 

__yes _x_no 

$750,000 

__ll..Yes no 


